UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Councill

E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
17 June 1997

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COWM SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS
Fifty-third session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 66t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 16 April 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai r man: M. SOMOL (Czech Republic)

CONTENTS
ORGANI ZATI ON OF THE WORK OF THE SESSI ON (conti nued)

CONS| DERATI ON OF DRAFT RESOLUTI ONS AND DECI SI ONS CONCERNI NG AGENDA | TEM 10

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Comn ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97- 12465 (E)



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.40 a.m

ORGANI ZATI ON OF THE WORK OF THE SESSI ON (agenda item 3) (conti nued)

1. The CHAIRMAN said that, followi ng consultations with the parties
concerned, it had been decided that he woul d make the foll ow ng statenent
concerning the situation of human rights in Col onbi a:

“The Commi ssion on Human Ri ghts warmy wel comes the opening of the
permanent O fice of the Hi gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights in Santa Fe
de Bogota. It welcones the conm tnent of the H gh Comm ssioner and of
t he Government of Colonbia to the establishnent of this Ofice, as can
be seen fromthe intensive negotiations |eading to the successfu

concl usion and signing, on 29 Novenber 1996, of the agreenent between
the aforementi oned parties on the establishnent of the said Ofice. The
Commi ssi on woul d have expected the Office to open nore pronmptly, and
expresses the hope that it will initiate its operational activities

i medi ately. |In accordance with the statenent by the Chairman of this
Commi ssion on 23 April 1996, the office is to assist the Col onbi an
authorities in devel oping policies and programres for the pronotion and
protection of human rights and to observe violations of human rights in
the country, meking reports thereon to the Hi gh Commi ssi oner

The Commi ssion al so acknow edges the efforts carried out by the
Governnment of Colonbia in the field of human rights and its wllingness
to cooperate with the Conmmi ssion's special rapporteurs and working

gr oups.

Not wi t hst andi ng t he above, the Commi ssion on Human Ri ghts renmains deeply
concerned that the situation of endemi c violence and the situation of
internal arned conflict affecting many parts of the country have
resulted in serious consequences for human rights.

The Commi ssion on Human Rights is al so deeply concerned at the

persi stence of thousands of violations of the right to life, and the

i ncreasing invol venent therein of so-called 'paramlitary groups'. This
conflict entails serious and continuous abuses and viol ati ons of human
rights and humanitarian |law by both State agents and guerrilla groups.

The Commi ssion urges the Governnent of Col onbia to continue to
strengthen its support, through all institutions of the State, for al
t hose who pronote the defence of human rights.

The Comnmi ssion urges the guerrilla groups in Colonbia to respect norns
of international humanitarian | aw and, especially, to abandon the use of
ki dnappi ng, hostage-taking, anti-personnel |andm nes, indiscrimnate
killings and all attacks on the civilian population. The Comm ssion
calls for the liberation, on humanitarian grounds, of the 70 Col onmbi an
soldiers held by a guerrilla group since August 1996.

The Commi ssion on Hunman Ri ghts acknow edges that the Government of
Col ombi a has taken steps for the application of humanitarian standards



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 3

in the conflict, and welcones its continued cooperation with the
International Committee of the Red Cross (ICRC) and the facilitation of
its humanitarian activities in the country.

The Commi ssion on Hunman Ri ghts remains deeply preoccupied at the

numer ous cases of di sappearances, as shown in the report of the

Wor ki ng Group on Enforced or Involuntary D sappearances

(docunent E/CN. 4/1997/34). The application at the national |evel of the
Decl aration on the Protection of all Persons from Enforced

Di sappear ances faces several obstacles, generating inpunity.

The Conmi ssion on Human Rights calls for the urgent adoption of nore
effective legislative, adm nistrative, judicial or other neasures to
prevent and term nate acts of enforced di sappearance in accordance with
article 3 of the Decl aration.

The Conmi ssion on Human Rights remains concerned at the alarmng |eve
of inpunity, in particular concerning abuses by State agents that
continue to fall under the jurisdiction of mlitary courts; it

encour ages the Government of Col onbia to continue and conclude the
process of reformof the mlitary penal code in accordance with the
recommendati ons nmade by the thematic rapporteur, inter alia as far as
the exclusion fromthe jurisdiction of mlitary courts of human rights
violations, and in particular of crinmes against humanity, is concerned.
It welcones the inportant advances nade in a number of cases of gross
human rights violations by the Human Rights Unit in the Ofice of the
General Prosecutor which is investigating and indicting State agents,
guerrillas and nmenbers of 'paramlitary groups' responsible for

viol ati ons of human rights or humanitarian | aw.

The Commi ssion on Hunman Rights is deeply concerned al so about the

persi stence of the practice of torture. The information before the
Committee against Torture indicates that the law in Colonmbia is not yet
in accordance with several obligations under the Convention agai nst
Torture. It calls upon the Government of Colonbia to conbat the
occurrence of torture and ill-treatnment as well as the inmpunity which
permts themto continue, as stated by the Special Rapporteur on torture
in his report (E/CN. 4/1997/7).

The Commi ssion on Hunman Ri ghts urges the Governnent of Col ombia to
conti nue strengthening ordinary justice versus special systems of
justice, the m suse of which can |l ead to serious violations of human
rights and denial of a fair trial

Wi |l e encouragi ng the work of the Special Comm ssion set up by the
Governnment of Col onbia for the analysis, followup and inplenentation of
the recomrendati ons of international human rights bodies, the Comm ssion
on Human Rights considers that the inplenmentation of these
recommendations, in particular those of the thematic rapporteurs and
wor ki ng groups, is still not sufficient.

The Conmi ssion expects that the activities of the new human rights
office in Bogota will help to inprove the human rights situation in



E/CN. 4
page 4

2.

/ 1997/ SR. 66

Col onbia, and to pronote a clinate of trust between the Governnment and
all sectors involved in the conflict, encouraging a process of
constructive dial ogue involving NGOs and ot her sectors of civil society,
and to prevent violations of human rights and international humanitarian
| aw.

The Comm ssion on Hunman Rights requests the Hi gh Conm ssioner to present
a conprehensive anal ytical report to the Comrission at its

fifty-fourth session on the setting up of the office and its activities,
and on devel opnents in the human rights situation in Col onbia.”

He said that, follow ng consultations, he could read out the follow ng

statenment noting the consensus that the Conm ssion had reached concerning the

Si tuat

ion of human rights in Liberia:

“The Comm ssion on Hurman Rights, neeting in Geneva from 10 March
to 18 April 1997, and recalling the Chairman's statement on the
situation of human rights in Liberia dated 24 April 1996, at the
62nd neeting of the fifty-second session of the Comm ssion on Human
Ri ghts, and all previous Security Council resolutions on Liberia, in
particul ar resolution 1041 (1996) of 26 January 1996, wel cones the
signing of the Abuja Agreenent and the revised schedul e of
i npl enmentation in August 1996, by the factional |eaders in Liberia. The
Commi ssion al so wel comes the substantial progress made in the
denobi li zation and disarnming of the warring factions in conformty with
the schedul e of inplenmentation expected to culmnate in a genera
el ection scheduled to take place in Liberia in May 1997, and urges al
Li berians to nove speedily towards reconciliation and the creation of a
vi abl e political and denocratic order in their country.

To this end, the Commi ssion notes with appreciation that severa
political parties have been registered with the newly restructured
El ecti on Commi ssion, headed by a non-factional chairman, and that plans
are under way to appoint a new head and ot her senior nenbers of the
judiciary.

The Comnmi ssion expresses its sincere appreciation to the Econonic
Comunity of West African States (ECOMS) and the Econonic Conmunity of
West African States Monitoring Goup (ECOMOG, and notes the need for
the strength of the peacekeeping troops on the ground to be increased in
order to ensure security in the country during the election period. In
this connection, the Commission calls upon all States of the
United Nations system and intergovernmental and non-governnenta
organi zations to provide Liberia with technical and financial assistance
to cope with the humanitarian situation and to provi de ECOMOG with
necessary |l ogistic and financial support to enable it to carry out its
mandat e

The Comnmi ssion al so expresses its appreciation to the States that
have so far contributed to the United Nations Trust Fund on Liberia and
calls upon other States to contribute generously to the Fund. It also
expresses its gratitude to the Organization of African Unity (OAU),



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 5

the United Nations, ICRC, NGOs and the international community for their
efforts in delivering humanitarian assi stance to, and ensuring peace in
Li beri a.

The Conmi ssion stresses the need for cohesion anong the
factions/parties, currently divided along ethnic groups, to abide by the
terms of the Abuja Accord and the nation's electoral |aw and encourages
the Group of Nine West African States that neets nonthly in Mnrovia to
gi ve inpetus to the issue of cohesion anobngst the factions and to act as
a check on any excesses of the factions.

The Commi ssion urges the Centre for Human Rights to provide the
Governnment of Liberia, at the end of the election and on request, with
advi sory services and technical assistance to enable it to revive its
ailing human rights structures and nmechani snms and calls upon the
United Nations Secretary-Ceneral to consider sending internationa
el ectoral nonitors and human rights nonitors to Liberia, at |east during
and after the election.

The Commi ssion decides to remain seized of the matter under agenda
item 18 entitled 'Advisory services'.”

CONSI DERATI ON OF DRAFT RESOLUTI ONS AND DECI SI ONS CONCERNI NG AGENDA | TEM 10

Draft resolution E/CN.4/1997/L.95 (Situation of human rights in Iraq)

3. M. VAN WILFFTEN PALTHE (Net herl ands), presenting the draft resolution
said that the situation of human rights in Iraq had unfortunately not

i nproved. Hence, the draft resolution condemed the massive and extrenely
grave violations of human rights by the Government of lIraq and called upon the
latter to abide by its freely undertaken obligations and to cooperate with
United Nations human rights nmechanisms, in particular by receiving a return
visit by the Special Rapporteur to Iraq. The Governnent of Iraq was also
requested to cooperate with the Tripartite Comm ssion to establish the

wher eabouts and resolve the fate of the remaining several hundred m ssing
persons, including prisoners of war, Kuwaiti nationals and third country

nationals victins of the illegal Iraqi occupation of Kuwait, and to ensure
equi tabl e distribution without discrimnation to the Iraqgi popul ati on of the
humani tari an supplies purchased with the proceeds of Iraqgi oil in

i mpl ementation of Security Council resolution 986 (1995) and the nenorandum of
understanding with the Secretary-General of May 1996 on that issue.

4, The nunerous sponsors of that resolution hoped that it would be adopted
wi t hout a vote

5. Ms. KLEIN (Secretary of the Comm ssion) announced that Japan, Estonia
and Australia should be added to the list of sponsors.

6. M. AL-DOURI (Observer for Iraq) said that he wi shed, at the outset, to
enphasi ze that the draft resolution under consideration was a further exanple
of the persistent desire of sone States to politicize the question of human
rights and turn it into the instrunent of their hegenony.




E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 6

7. Several Security Council resolutions were nmentioned in subparagraph (b)
of the third preanbul ar paragraph. Concerning resolution 688 (1991), it
shoul d be noted that the Iraqi Governnment had cooperated fully with the
various humanitarian organi zations providing aid for the Iraqgi people. Wth
regard to resolution 687 (1991), Iraq had repeatedly stated that, follow ng
the cessation of hostilities, it had released all the prisoners of war in

cl ose cooperation with the International Comrittee of the Red Cross. It had
conplied strictly with that resolution 687 (1991), as well as all the other
Security Council resolutions concerning Kuwait. Consequently, it nust be
assuned that, if sonme Powers had seen fit to nmention all those instrunments, it
was solely in order to confuse the nenbers of the Commi ssion and justify the
mai nt enance of the enbargo that had been inposed on Iragq. Wth regard to
resolution 986 (1995), he pointed out that, alnpst six nmonths after the entry
into force of the nenorandum of understanding that had been signed with the
United Nations, the Iraqi people were still awaiting the food supplies that
were to be delivered to them As for the nmedicines, only 5 per cent of the
orders placed by Iraq had been accepted and no delivery had yet been nade.

8. Paragraph 2 (a) referred to massive violations of human rights. Such
accusations had been reiterated every year since the war of aggression

| aunched by the coalition forces against Iraq and no one had attenpted to
verify whether they were substantiated or to determ ne whether progress had
been nade towards the elimnation of the problens that were inpeding the
pronmoti on of human rights in lraq. In fact, the sole aimof the authors of
those accusations was to harmlraq, increase the political pressures to which
it was being subjected and maintain the enbargo.

9. In paragraph 3 (c), lraq was called upon to cooperate with

United Nations nechanisns. He wished to reaffirmthat the Iraqgi authorities
were cooperating fully with the United Nations organs concerned w th human
rights and were meking every effort to ensure that their reports to the
treaty-monitoring bodies were presented on tine. Wth regard to the Specia
Rapporteur, the Iraqi CGovernnment had repeatedly expressed its views on his
reports. It regretted M. Stoel's inveterate hostility towards Iraq and his
continued pursuit of a selective and biased approach to the situation of human
rights in the country. The Iraqi Government categorically rejected the idea
of sending human rights nonitors to Iraq, since that would constitute
unacceptable interference in its internal affairs.

10. The insinuation in paragraph 3 (d), to the effect that the judiciary in
Irag was not independent, was totally unrealistic. Moreover, the country had
not pronul gated any law granting inpunity to persons who had comritted acts of
mur der .

11. It should be noted that the decrees, issued in exceptional circunstances
and providing for the application of penalties that were described as “cruel”
in paragraph 3 (e), had been abrogated and the conpetent United Nations organs
had been duly inforned of that fact.

12. In paragraph 3 (h), lrag was called upon to cease its repressive
practices against the Kurds in the north. |In that connection, it mght be
wonder ed how the Central Governnent, which had no mlitary or civilian

adm nistration in that region, could have engaged in the acts of which it was



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 7

accused. Simlar allegations were nmade concerning the popul ation of the

sout hern marsh areas. The Iraqi Government had al ready had occasion to point
out that the work that was being carried out in the marsh areas consisted of
devel opnent projects that had been formul ated several years earlier by

Ameri can, European and Japanese conpanies. By virtue of those projects, those
areas were currently making a valuable contribution to the Iraqi popul ation's
food suppli es.

13. Wth regard to paragraph 3 (k), the Iraqi delegation wi shed to reaffirm
the Governnent's strong desire to conmply with the menorandum of under st andi ng.
It was the United States and the United Ki ngdom which were obstructing the
application of its provisions and which should therefore be held responsible
for the suffering that the Iragi people were continuing to endure. The
sponsors of the draft resolution had naturally disregarded the attitude of
those two countries and had not even seen fit to remind themthat the

menor andum of under standi ng was a techni cal docunent that should not be
politicized. Furthernore, the nere fact of calling upon Iraq to apply that
instrument illustrated the evident bias of the sponsors.

14. Al t hough the pronotion of human rights was a noble objective, there was
a risk that the international conmunity's endeavours in that field mght |ose
all credibility if it were turned into an instrunment of the narrow m nded
political interests of sone parties. A veritable genocide was being commtted
in lrag and responsibility therefor nust be born by those who, through the
draft resolution under consideration, were seeking to maintain the enbargo
that had been inposed on the Iraqi people. Ws that not a flagrant violation
of human rights? For all the above reasons, the Iraqi del egati on appealed to
all the States Menmbers of the Conmission to vote against the draft resolution

15. M. RAZZOOQ (Observer for Kuwait) drew the attention of the sponsors of
the draft resolution to a slight error: in paragraph 4 (a) of the English
version, the words “fifty-third” should be replaced by “fifty-fourth”

16. He wel coned the fact that the draft resolution nentioned
Security Council resolution 686 (1991), in which Iraq was called upon to
rel ease all Kuwaitis and nationals of other States whomit mght still be

hol ding in detention, and pointed out that the United Nations had established
mechani sms to ensure that the coercive provisions adopted under Chapter VII of

the Charter were respected. It was high tine to put those nechanisnms into
effect, since no progress had been nmade during the last six years in regard to
the fate of the missing persons. |In that matter, Iraq must be held

responsi ble not only norally, for having invaded Kuwait, but also legally
under the standards of international law. Since its mandate was to defend
human rights throughout the world, the Comm ssion should support Kuwait's just
cause by adopting the draft resolution under consideration

17. M. DE | CAZA (Mexico) requested clarifications concerning the meani ng of
the term “Wel comes” in paragraph 1 of the English version, which seened to
have caused the translators problens. |In French, that term had been rendered
as “Prend note avec intérét” and, in Spanish, “Acoge con benepl&acito”. In
resolution 1996/ 72, the expression used was “Prend acte avec satisfaction”.
Those were two different concepts. Wile the Commi ssion could certainly




E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 8

express appreciation for the Special Rapporteur's work and thank himtherefor
how could it welconme with satisfaction a report that painted such a negative
pi cture of the human rights situation in a country?

18. M. VAN WULFFTEN PALTHE (Net herl ands) said that he could not take a

deci sion on that linguistic problemand requested the Secretariat to ensure
that the English termwas translated correctly in the different |anguages. At
all events, paragraph 1 contained two concepts: on the one hand, the

Commi ssion noted with interest the report presented by the Special Rapporteur
and, on the other hand, it expressed its dismay at the content of that report,
whi ch was precisely the raison d' étre of the draft resol ution

19. M. DEMBRI (Algeria) endorsed the remarks nmade by the representative of
Mexi co and enphasi zed that, instead of merely taking note of the reports
presented by the special rapporteurs, the Conm ssion all too often comrended
some of them It should avoid expressing preferences through wordi ng which
at all events, mght hanmper an objective assessnment of the work acconplished.

20. Wth regard to the substance of the draft resolution, Algeria, as a
menber of the Arab League, welconed Iraqg's recognition of Kuwait and the
process of denocratization that was under way in the country. Although there
were still unresol ved questions, particularly in connection with the Kuwait
det ai nees, the best way to settle themwas to continue the dial ogue. From
that standpoint, while not contesting the substance of the draft resolution
Al geria was astonished that it did not nmake even the slightest reference to
the effects of the enbargo on the everyday human rights situation in Iraq,
whi ch was characterized by malnutrition and |ack of medicine. He urged the
Commi ssion to take that humanitarian aspect into consideration in such a way
as to balance the draft resolution under consideration. He also expressed
reservations concerning the provisions of paragraph 4 (b).

21. For all those reasons, Algeria would abstain in the event of a vote.

22. M. COVMBA (Centre for Human Rights), presenting the financial

i mplications of the draft resolution, under the ternms of which the nmandate of
the Speci al Rapporteur would be extended for a further year, indicated that an
appropriation of $155,400 to that end had been provided for in section 21
(Human rights) of the progranme budget for the biennium 1996-1997. The
resources needed for the first quarter of 1998 would be provided for in the
proposed progranme budget for the biennium 1998-1999.

23. M. ZAHRAN (Egypt) said that, although the territorial integrity and
sovereignty of lIraq nust be preserved, it was essential that human rights and
fundamental freedons be respected everywhere in the world, including that
country. The international conmunity was demandi ng that Iraqg release all the
Kuwai ti prisoners and shed light on the fate of the m ssing persons.

Mor eover, resolution 986 (1995), concerning the purchase of foodstuffs and
medi cine fromoil revenue, should be applied inmediately, since the del ays
were prejudicial to the fundanental rights of the Iraqi people as enshrined in
the Uni versal Declaration of Human Ri ghts.

24, Li ke other countries, Egypt believed that the unprecedented measures
provi ded for in paragraph 4 (b), which did not fall within the scope of the



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 9

Conmi ssion's mandate and required the consent of the country concerned, m ght
have serious political repercussions. Consequently, Egypt would abstain if
the draft resolution were put to a vote.

25. At the request of the representative of Cuba, a vote was taken by
roll-call on draft resolution E/CN. 4/1997/L.95.

26. Egypt. having been drawn by lot by the Chairnman, was call ed upon to vote
first.

In favour: Argentina, Austria, Belarus, Brazil, Bulgaria, Canada,
Chile, Col onbia, Czech Republic, Denmark
Dom ni can Republic, Ecuador, ElI Sal vador, Ethiopia, France,
Germany, Guinea, lreland, Italy, Japan, Mexico,
Net her |l ands, Ni caragua, Republic of Korea,
Russi an Federation, South Africa, Ukraine, United Kingdom
United States, Uruguay, Zaire.

Abst ai ning: Al geria, Angola, Bangl adesh, Benin, Bhutan, Cape Verde,
Chi na, Cuba, Egypt, Gabon, India, Indonesia, Madagascar
Mal aysi a, Mali, Mozanbi que, Nepal, Pakistan, Philippines,
Sri Lanka, Uganda, Zi nbabwe.

27. Draft resolution E/CN. 4/1997/1.95 was adopted by 31 votes to none,
with 22 abstentions.

Draft resolution E/CN.4/1997/L.92 (Extrajudicial, sunmmary or arbitrary
executions)

28. Ms. PENNEGARD (Cbserver for Sweden), presenting the draft resolution
read out the amendnents which the sponsors had agreed to make thereto. First
of all, it had been decided to nove the phrase “and rel evant provisions of the
I nternational Covenant on Civil and Political Rights,” fromthe begi nning of
the second to the end of the first preanbul ar paragraph. The second paragraph
woul d then read as foll ows:

“Having regard to the legal framework of the nandate of the
Speci al Rapporteur on extrajudicial, sumrary or arbitrary executions,
i ncludi ng the provisions of Comn ssion resolution 1992/72 of
5 March 1992 and General Assenbly resolution 47/136 of
18 Decenber 1992,".

Par agraph 7 had been slightly reworded as foll ows:

“Notes the inportant role the Special Rapporteur has played
towards the elimnation of extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary
executions and encourages himto continue, within the franework of his
mandate, to collect information fromall concerned and to seek the views
and comments of Governnments in order to be able to respond effectively
to reliable information that comes before himand to follow up on
conmuni cati ons and country visits;”.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66

page 10
29. The sponsors hoped that the draft resolution would be adopted wi thout a
vot e.

30. Ms. KLEIN (Secretary of the Conmm ssion) announced that Lithuania,
Venezuel a, Norway and New Zeal and had co-sponsored the draft resol ution

31. M. ROGOV (Russian Federation) said that the Russian del egati on had
joined the consensus on the draft resolution under consideration. However, it
wi shed to nmake a nunber of conmments intended for the Special Rapporteur so
that he woul d take care to avoid exceeding the scope of his nmandate and al so
to avoid any selective interpretation of the provisions of the Comm ssion's
resolutions, particularly resolution 1996/62 on hostage-taking which, at

Russi a's proposal, had been adopted by the Commi ssion without a vote. In
paragraph 5 of that resolution, the Comr ssion urged all thematic specia
rapporteurs and working groups to address, as appropriate, the consequences of
hostage-taking in their forthcomng reports to the Comr ssion. However, in
spite of the repeated requests of the Russian Federation, the Specia
Rapporteur had not referred to that resolution in the report that he had
presented to the fifty-first session of the General Assembly or in that which
t he Conmi ssion was considering. Such an attitude detracted fromthe Specia
Rapporteur's credibility and nade cooperation difficult. The

Russi an Federation would take that into account in the follow up work on that
i mportant question.

32. Draft resolution E/CN.4/1997/L.92, as orally anended. was adopted
without a vote.

Draft resolution E/CN.4/1997/L.94 (Human rights in Cuba)

33. Ms. RUBIN (United States), presenting the draft resolution, noted

two corrections that needed to be made to the text. |In the second preanbul ar
par agraph, the word “Noting” should be replaced by “Recalling also” and, in
paragraph 6 of the English text, the comm follow ng the words “Speci a
Rapporteur” should be del et ed.

34. The Speci al Rapporteur on the situation of human rights in Cuba had
found no inprovenent and had called for a full investigation of the incident
in February 1996 in which two civilian aircraft had been shot down. The
regime was continuing to deny the fundamental freedons of the popul ation

whi ch were enshrined in the Universal Declaration of Human Ri ghts.
Pro-denmocracy and hurman rights activists were still being subjected to
threats, harassment and intimnmdation. Cuba was the only country in the
Western hem sphere to reject denocracy, human rights and econonmic |iberalism
The Cuban Governnent was continuing to swi magainst the tide of history by
attenpting to control the free flow of information, regardless of its origin
and was jamm ng foreign broadcasts and confiscating computers in order to
prevent access to the Internet. That mstrust of everything relating to

i nformati on was confirnmed by the Cuban authorities' persistent refusal to neet
the Commi ssion's |ongstandi ng request that the Special Rapporteur be permtted
to visit the country.

35. The Cuban people wanted to enjoy civic rights and denocracy, freely
express their opinions, exercise their right to freedomof religion and



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 11

organi ze thenselves in the workplace without interference by the Government.
They were aspiring to a decent life within the framework of a free econony.
Unfortunately, they were being routinely denied all those fundanmental rights.
The purpose of the draft resolution was to send a clear nessage to the effect
that the Cuban Governnent nust fulfil its obligations.

36. Ms. KLEIN (Secretary of the Comm ssion) pointed out that Norway,
Fi nl and, the Netherlands, France, Luxenbourg, Portugal and Switzerland had
co-sponsored the resolution

37. M. LI Baodong (China) said that the draft resolution fell totally

out side the scope of the Commission's nmandate, which was to protect and
pronmote human rights, and should therefore be rejected. Sonme mgj or Powers
wer e taking advantage of their strong position in order to inpose their wll
on small countries. The political and econonmi c sanctions that were being
appl i ed agai nst Cuba were causing the population untold suffering. Hence, it
was not the Cuban CGovernnent but rather the parties responsible for that
situation which the Conm ssion should condenmm. For all those reasons, the
Chi nese del egati on woul d vote against the draft resolution

38. Ms. GHOSE (I ndia) noted that the draft resolution on Cuba had been
submitted to the Conmi ssion for years w thout any progress being achieved.
The time had possibly cone to recognize the fact that that manner of
addressing a problem which, after all, was of a bilateral nature nmerely nmade
matters worse and the Commi ssion should therefore reconsider its nethods.

39. M. DEMBRI (Algeria) said that the bilateral problens underlying the
draft resolution could be resolved only through dialogue. It was essential to
transcend sone contingent events and | ook to the future. However, the
proposed text was unlikely to prompte closer understandi ng between Cuba and
the United States. His delegation therefore had serious reservations in that
regard.

40. M. TARM DZI (1 ndonesia) endorsed the viewpoints expressed by Algeria
and | ndi a.

41. Ms. HERTZ CADI Z (Chile) said that her del egation, which renained
concerned at the situation of human rights in Cuba, intended to vote in favour
of the draft resolution. However, she noted that the latter referred to
aspects which the Comm ssion had al ready discussed in 1996 and which did not
need to be reiterated at the present session. Mreover, the increasing
politicization characterizing the consideration of the draft resolution was

di sturbing, since the ideol ogical considerations which were being introduced
in no way served the cause of human rights. The Chilean del egati on, which had
al ready expressed serious reservations at the previous session concerning the
manner in which that question was being tackled, invited the Conm ssion to
adopt an approach that was nore likely to facilitate the effective application
of its resolutions.

42. M. AMAT FORES (Cuba) said that, year after year, the Comm ssion was
call ed upon to consider a draft resolution which, under the pretext of
def endi ng human rights, actually served the interests of the Governnment of the




E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 12

United States and was totally in keeping with the hostile and aggressive
policy which that country had been pursuing agai nst Cuba for 37 years.

43. Everyone was aware that, in order to obtain the nunber of votes needed
for its draft resolution, Washi ngton engaged in systematic bl ackmail of
numer ous Governnents. For their part, the Cuban people and Government woul d
continue to inprove their society and their denmpcracy and build their future
wi th courage and dignity.

44, However, the Cuban Governnent was al ways ready to engage in dial ogue and
cooperate, on an equal footing, with all those who, in contrast to the Specia
Rapporteur and the sponsors of the draft resolution, respected Cuba's

soverei gnty and i ndependence. The Cuban del egation invited all the nenbers
who were famliar with the real situation in Cuba to vote against the draft
resol ution.

45, M. COMBA (Centre for Human Rights) presented the financial inplications
of the draft resolution under which the Special Rapporteur's nmandate woul d be
extended for a further year. To that end, an amount of $45,000 had been
provided for in section 21 of the progranme budget for the biennium 1996-1997.
The resources needed for the first quarter of 1998 would be provided for in

t he proposed programe budget for the biennium 1998-1999.

46. At the request of the representative of Cuba, a vote was taken by
roll-call on draft resolution E/CN. 4/1997/L.94, as orally anended.

47, The United Kingdom having been drawn by |lot by the Chairman, was called

upon to vote first.

In favour: Argentina, Austria, Bulgaria, Canada, Chile,
Czech Republic, Denmark, El Salvador, France,
Germany, lreland, Italy, Japan, Netherl ands,
Ni caragua, Republic of Korea, United Ki ngdom
United States, Uruguay.

Agai nst : Bel arus, Bhutan, China, Cuba, I|ndia, |Indonesia,
Sout h Africa, Uganda, Zaire, Zi nbabwe.

Abst ai ni ng: Al geria, Angola, Bangl adesh, Benin, Brazil, Cape Verde,
Col onbi a, Dom ni can Republic, Egypt, Ecuador
Et hi opi a, Gabon, Guinea, Madagascar, Ml aysia, Mali
Mexi co, Mpzanbi que, Nepal, Pakistan, Philippines,
Russi an Federation, Sri Lanka, Ukraine.

48. Draft resolution E/CN.4/1997/L.94, as orally anended. was adopted
by 19 votes to 10, with 24 abstenti ons.

Draft resolution E/CN.4/1997/L.96 (Situation of human rights in East Tinor)

49. M. VAN WOLFFTEN PALTHE (Net herl ands), presenting the draft resolution
on behalf of the States nenbers of the European Union and the other
co-sponsors, said that the situation of human rights in East Tinor remained a
matter of grave concern. It was dealt with in several reports presented to




E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 13

the Comm ssion in which reference was made to nultiple violations (torture,
sumrmary executions, etc.). At its previous session, the Comm ssion had
approved a statenent by the Chairman providing for several practical neasures
intended to inprove the situation, particularly through the dispatch of a
speci al rapporteur to that province, the conclusion of a menorandum of
understanding with the Office of the Hi gh Commi ssioner for Human Rights for
the inmplementation of a technical assistance progranme, and the assignnent to
the UNDP Office at Jakarta of an official fromthe Centre for Human Ri ghts who
woul d be able to visit the province. Unfortunately, during the past year
there had hardly been any progress in regard to conpliance with the

conmi tnments nade by Indonesia. Moreover, the Indonesian del egati on had shown
reluctance to tackle the problem Consequently, the sponsors had no choice
but to present that draft resolution. |In that connection, it should be noted
that they were calling solely for conpliance with the comrtnments made in the
Chairman's statenent. They hoped that the draft resolution would be adopted
wi t hout being put to a vote.

50. Ms. KLEIN (Secretary of the Comm ssion) announced that Hungary,
Li echtenstein, the Czech Republic, Slovakia, Estonia, Brazil, the
United States and Bul garia had co-sponsored the draft resolution

51. Ms. GHOSE (I ndia) thanked the States nenbers of the European Union

whi ch had sponsored the draft resolution for giving her an opportunity to
partici pate in what she regarded as a debate on their foreign policy. She had
noted that, of the 14 draft resolutions presented to the Comm ssion on the
subj ect of country situations, 10 had been submitted by the States menbers of
t he European Union and all of them concerned devel oping countries. Their
useful ness was questionable. Moreover, three States had decided to no | onger
cooperate with the Commi ssion, while affirmng their willingness to continue
col l aborating with the United Nations and other international organizations.

52. At the Commi ssion's |ast three sessions, statenents by the Chairnman on
the question of human rights in East Tinor had been adopted by consensus. The
I ndonesi an Governnent had declared its willingness to honour its comrtnents
and to cooperate with all the human rights nmechanisns. |t had taken nmeasures
to follow up on the nmenorandum of intent on technical cooperation, which had
been concluded with the Centre for Human Rights in Cctober 1994, and a

menor andum of under st andi ng was bei ng negotiated. Furthernore, the Indonesian
authorities were currently pursuing a policy of transparency in East Tinor,

whi ch was now accessible to the representatives of Governments wi shing to
visit it.

53. It nmust be assuned, therefore, that the question under consideration was
primarily political, although it involved sone aspects relating to human
rights. The fact was that sone former col onial Powers wi shed to continue
exercising jurisdiction over countries that had ceased to be their col onies.

54. In the case in question, it would be nore advisable for the Persona
Representative of the Secretary-Ceneral, who had visited East Tinmor in March
to continue to offer his good offices with a view to a just and conprehensive
settl enment of the question. Being convinced that the draft resolution which
had been presented could not contribute to a solution, the Indian del egation
woul d vote against it.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 14

55. M. TARM DZI (Il ndonesia) said that the draft resol ution under
consideration was evidently of a political nature. During the debates, and
even before the session, unfounded accusati ons had been made agai nst | ndonesi a
and its arnmed forces concerning, in particular, acts of brutality that had

al l egedly been conmitted agai nst detainees. Moreover, it was undoubtedly not
a coincidence that Ranmps Horta had prepared a statenent, which had been read
out before the Conmi ssion and in which he accused the Indonesian arned forces
of conmitting the sane atrocities and attenpted to prove his allegations by
means of fake photographs.

56. Li kewi se, the ostentatious concern that the sponsors of the draft
resolution had shown at the all eged aggravati on of the situation of human
rights in East Tinor was based on a misinterpretation of the situation in the
province. In actual fact, it was Ranps Horta who had declared hinmself in
favour of the organization of nore violent denonstrations intended to attract
the attention of the international community. Those violent denonstrations
occurred when foreign personalities visited East Tinor and the Indonesian

del egati on wondered whether the international community really w shed to
endorse that type of deliberately organized viol ence.

57. The policy of the Indonesian Covernnent was to prevent the security
forces fromever resorting to practices such as torture, not only because that
woul d detract fromtheir credibility but also because it would lead to further
vi ol ence.

58. The affirmation by the sponsors of the draft resolution, to the effect
that the I ndonesian Governnment had not conplied with the commtments made in
the statement by the Chairman of the fifty-second session of the Comm ssion
was al so totally unfounded. Mbdreover, it was generally recognized that the
invitati ons extended to the Comn ssion's special mechani snms were the
prerogative of the Governnent concerned and, in the case in question, the

I ndonesi an Governnent had refused to invite the Special Rapporteur on torture
sinmply because he had already visited the country in 1991

59. The sponsors also affirnmed that | ndonesia favoured confrontation to the
detrinent of cooperation. However, it was the States menmbers of the

Eur opean Uni on whi ch had abandoned the courteous approach that they had
adopted in recent years in order to confront Indonesia with a fait acconpli,

Wi t hout any consultation or prior proposal. They had subsequently proposed to
t he I ndonesi an del egation a new draft statenent by the Chairman, which the

del egation had rejected. A country that was friendly to Indonesia had then
offered its good offices to devise an arrangenent acceptable to the

Eur opean Uni on and | ndonesia, but that attenpt had proved fruitless since the
sponsors believed that the proposal in question did not go far enough

60. The I ndonesi an Governnment had cooperated fully and had shown great
flexibility in inplementing the technical cooperation agreenent that had been
concluded with the office of the H gh Conmm ssioner for Human Ri ghts/Centre for
Human Ri ghts. He al so enphasi zed that the menorandum of intent on technica
cooperation that had been concluded with the Centre for Human Ri ghts had been
drawn up at the request of the Indonesian Government. Moreover, before the
Hi gh Commi ssioner's visit to Indonesia in Decenmber 1995, it had been deci ded
to convert that nmenorandum of intent into a menorandum of understandi ng.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 15

One nonth before the current session, the Indonesian Governnent had presented
a counter proposal to the draft nmenorandum of understandi ng drawn up by the
Centre with a viewto expediting its finalization. Indonesia had not yet
received a reply fromthe Centre. However, the draft in question appeared to
have fallen into the hands of third parties which seemed to want to establish
a |inkage between the technical cooperation and human rights nonitoring
functions. Consequently, the Indonesian Government and the official in charge
of the office of the H gh Conm ssioner had deci ded to postpone the

negoti ations until a nore opportune date.

61. The I ndonesi an del egation also rejected the draft resolution because it
ran counter to the fundamental principles agreed upon in the Vienna

Decl arati on and Programme of Action, including the principles of objectivity,
non-sel ectivity and inpartiality in the consideration of questions relating to
human rights. In addition, the adoption of such a subjective and politica
draft resolution would be likely to inpede the efforts of the new
Secretary-General, who had undertaken to continue his good offices with a view
to reaching a just and conprehensive settlenent of the question of East Tinor.
The I ndonesi an Governnent believed that a draft resolution aimed solely at
bringing pressure to bear on a Menber State could in no way contribute to the
positive devel opnents in the field of the pronotion and protection of human
rights. The Indonesian del egati on hoped that the nmenbers of the Conm ssion
woul d act wisely by rejecting the draft resol ution

62. M. ZAHRAN (Egypt) said that the Egyptian del egati on, which had
participated in the attenpts to ensure that a statenment by the Chairman on the
qguestion of East Tinmor could be adopted by consensus, rejected any utilization
of the Commission for political ends and refused to allow the question of
human rights to be used as a pretext for interference in the internal affairs
of a State. Egypt supported the endeavours of the Secretary-General, who had
appoi nted a personal representative for East Tinmor, welconed the diligent
efforts of the Indonesian Governnent and encouraged the latter to continue a
di al ogue with the parties concerned. For all those reasons, it would have
been preferable to avoid presenting a draft resolution on the situation of
human rights in East Tinor. 1In the event of a vote, the Egyptian del egation
woul d vote against it.

63. M. CHOADHURY (Bangl adesh) noted that, once again, an Asian country was
being called to account and the predoni nant inpression was one of “déja vu”.
The adoption of such a draft resolution, which was totally lacking in
objectivity, would be counter-productive. Mreover, the explanations provided
by the Indonesi an del egati on were satisfactory. For that reason, the

Bangl adeshi del egati on woul d vote agai nst the draft resolution.

64. M. DEMBRI (Algeria) noted that a certain feeling of uneasiness could be
observed since, while the Conm ssion had been expecting a statenment by the
Chai rman on the situation in East Tinor, it had been presented with a draft
resolution on that question wi thout any prior open consultation. He thought
that it would be preferable to adopt a nore consensual approach and hoped t hat
t he Conmi ssion was not turning into a war machi ne against the third world.

Mor eover, the situation was fairly contradictory, since the Secretary-Cenera
was maki ng considerable efforts to deal with that question and the |Indonesian
Government had nade commitnments for the whole of the year 1997. However, the



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 16

draft resolution had been presented in April, without awaiting the end of that
period. The Algerian delegation feared that the adoption of the draft
resolution mght render the task of the Secretary-General and his persona
representative even nore difficult and wondered whether it would be possible
to withdraw the text and conduct nore extensive consultations with a viewto
formul ating a statenent by the Chairman that could be adopted by consensus.

65. M. AKRAM (Paki stan) endorsed the proposal of the Algerian del egation
and requested the authors of the draft resolution to make a final effort to
reach an agreenent on a statenment by the Chairnan.

66. M. VAN WULFFTEN PALTHE ( Net herl ands) said that, during the session, as
in the case of previous sessions of the Conm ssion, discussions had been held
between the del egations of the States nenmbers of the European Union and the

I ndonesi an del egati on but the Indonesian Anbassador had indicated that it had
not been possible to reach an agreement. Hence, the States menbers of the

Eur opean Union had felt obliged to present a draft resolution. The

Eur opean Union remained willing to discuss the possibility of a statenent by
the Chairman, provided that it went further than the statenment by the Chairnman
of the fifty-second session of the Commi ssion

67. M. HAM DON ALl (Mal aysia) said that only cooperation and di al ogue coul d
further the cause of human rights and the draft resolution presented by the
Eur opean Uni on woul d i npede the efforts of Indonesia and the Centre for Human
Ri ghts. Furthernore, the Ml aysi an del egation noted that the |Indonesian
Government had al ways cooperated with the Comm ssion's nechani sns and,
consequently, announced its intention of voting against the draft resol ution

68. M. HWANG (Republic of Korea) welconmed the efforts that the I ndonesian
Governnment had nade to inprove the situation of human rights in East Tinor.
The del egation of the Republic of Korea had hoped that the Comm ssion would be
able to reach a consensus concerning a statement by the Chairnman because, in
the field of human rights, only dial ogue was fruitful. Since that had not
been possible, it would abstain in the event of a vote.

69. Ms. BAUTISTA (Philippines) said that, as a matter of principle, the

Phi |'i ppi ne del egation systematically abstained during the adoption of draft
resol utions on the human rights situation in a particular country, since such
a step could only lead to a politicization of the Comm ssion's work. However,
in view of the considerable efforts nade by the Indonesi an Governnent and the
good offices offered by the personal representative of the Secretary-General
it would vote against the draft resol ution

70. At the request of the representative of Indonesia, a vote was taken by
roll-call on draft resolution E/CN. 4/1997/L.96.

71. I ndia, having been drawn by lot by the Chairnman, was called upon to vote

first.

In favour: Angol a, Austria, Brazil, Bulgaria, Canada, Cape Verde,
Czech Republic, Dennark, Domni nican Republic, Ecuador
El Sal vador, France, Germany, lreland, Italy, Mzanbique,
Net herl ands, United Kingdom United States, Uruguay.



Agai nst :

Abst ai ni ng:

E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 66
page 17

Bangl adesh, Bhutan, China, Cuba, Egypt, India, I|Indonesia,
Madagascar, Ml aysia, Nepal, Pakistan, Philippines,
Sri Lanka, Zi nbabwe.

Al geria, Argentina, Belarus, Benin, Chile, Col onbia,

Et hi opi a, Gabon, CGuinea, Japan, Mali, Mexico, Nicaragua,
Republ i c of Korea, Russian Federation, South Africa,
Uganda, Zaire.

72. Draft resolution E/CN. 4/1997/L.96 was adopted by 20 votes to 14,

with 18 abstentions.

The neeting rose at 1.05 p. m




